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NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.
Unless otherwise indicated by the context, references herein to the “Company”, “NewBridge”, “we”,
“our” or “us” means NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its predecessors.
Forward Looking Statements
This annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended that are based on management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available
to our management. For this purpose any statement contained in this annual report on Form 10-K that is
not a statement of historical fact may be deemed to be forward-looking, including, but not limited to those
relating to future demand for the products and services we offer, changes in the composition of the
products and services we offer, future revenues, expenses, results of operations, liquidity and capital
resources or cash flows, the commodity price environment, managing our asset base, our ability to
restructure our existing credit facilities or to obtain additional debt or equity financing, management’s
assessment of internal control over financial reporting, financial results, opportunities, growth, business
plans, strategies and objectives. Without limiting the foregoing, words such as “believe,” “expect,”
“project,” “intend,” “estimate,” “budget,” “plan,” “forecast,” “predict,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “should,”
or “anticipate” or comparable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These
statements by their nature involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may
cause our actual results, performance or achievements or the industry to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
Such factors include, but are not limited to, market factors, market prices and marketing activity, future
revenues and costs, unsettled political conditions, civil unrest and governmental actions, foreign currency
fluctuations, and environmental and labor laws and other factors detailed herein and in our other filings
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) filings. Additional Factors that
may cause actual results, our performance or achievements, or industry results, to differ materially from
those contemplated by such forward-looking statements include without limitation:
· our ability to raise capital when needed and on acceptable terms and conditions;
· the intensity of competition; and
· general economic conditions.
Forward-looking statements are predictions and not guarantees of future performance or events. The
forward-looking statements are based on current industry, financial and economic information, which we
have assessed but which by its nature, is dynamic and subject to rapid and possibly abrupt changes. Our
actual results could differ materially from those stated or implied by such forward-looking statements due
to risks and uncertainties associated with our business. We hereby qualify all our forward-looking
statements by these cautionary statements. These forward-looking statements speak only as of their dates
and should not be unduly relied upon. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All written
and oral forward-looking statements made in connection with this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are
attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by these
cautionary statements. Given the uncertainties that surround such statements, you are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.
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Item 1. Business
Company History
NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc. (“NewBridge” or the “Company”, formerly NABUFIT Global, Inc.), a
Delaware Corporation was incorporated in May 1983 in the State of Colorado and re-incorporated in the
State of Delaware in April 2008.
Effective August 30, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement on Transfer of Shares (“Transfer
Agreement”) whereby it sold all of the interest held in its operating subsidiaries NABUFIT Denmark,
NABUFIT China, and NABUFIT IP (“Operating Subsidiaries”) and consequently ceased its prior
operations (“Operations Sale”). See Note 5 – discontinued operations. Prior to the Operations Sale, the
Company, through its Operating Subsidiaries designed, manufactured and marketed the NABUFIT virtual
training and fitness products and services (“NABUFIT Products”). After completion of the Operations
Sale, all of the Company’s equity in the Operating Subsidiaries were transferred and all of its interests in
the NABUFIT Product and the associated technology and intellectual property ceased.
On October 19, 2017, the shareholders approved of an amendment to the Company’s Certificate of
Incorporation effecting a change of the Company’s name from Nabufit Global, Inc. to NewBridge Global
Ventures, Inc. to more accurately reflects its business objectives. The name change was effective as of
December 12, 2017 and the Company’s new symbol is “NBGV”.
Nature of Business
NewBridge is an early stage business which provides consulting services related to the legal medical
cannabis production and distribution industries. Prior to September 2017, the Company designed,
manufactured and marketed the Nabufit virtual training and fitness products and services. In September
2017, the Company sold its operating subsidiaries and the related business and as a result changed its
business model.
NewBridge is currently engaged in providing business consulting services to several companies in the
medical marijuana and cannabis related industries. These companies include an online education
company providing education to healthcare professionals on medical cannabis and the endocannabinoid
system, and a distribution company focused on delivering best in class hemp oil and medical marijuana
products.
In connection with such consulting agreements, the Company provides the following services:
·
·
·
·
·

Strategic advisory and services;
Business services;
Marketing services;
Acquisition and development services; and
Strategic partnership and consolidation services.
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On February 19, 2018, New Bridge Global Ventures, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into an Asset
Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) with Elevated Portfolio Holdings, LLC (“Elevated
Portfolio”), whereby Elevated Education Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“Elevated”)
agreed to purchase the assets of Elevated Portfolio for 2,000,000 shares (“Shares”) of the Company’s
common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Common Stock”). Elevated Portfolio offers medically
focused education modules to health professionals about the use of cannabis for health and wellness. The
Purchase Agreement was closed on February 28, 2018. As a result, the Company is able to use the
acquired assets to continue its consulting business and provide key educational products as part of its
service offering.
Reverse Stock Split
Effective June 27, 2017, the Company filed an Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
(“Restated Certificate”) with the Delaware Secretary of State whereby the Company effected a reverse
stock split to reduce the number of shares of outstanding common stock at a rate of 1 share for every 30
shares of common stock then outstanding (“Reverse Split”). The approval of the Restated Certificate was
approved by written consent of holders of a majority of the Company’s common stock. Each stockholder
owning fewer than 30 shares of common stock immediately before the effective time of the Reverse Stock
Split received from the Company $0.10 in cash, without interest, for each of such shares of common
stock; and (b) each stockholder owning of record 30 or more shares of common stock immediately before
the effective time of the Reverse Split held, after the Reverse Split, the number of shares of common
stock equal to 1/30th of the number held prior to the Reverse Split. On June 28, 2017 the Company filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and the Company’s stockholders were furnished
with a Definitive Information Statement filed on Schedule 14(c) to advise the stockholders of the
corporate actions. All share and per-share amounts included in this report have been restated to reflect the
1 for 30 reverse stock split.
Employees
As of December 31, 2017, we had 2 full-time employees. We have no collective bargaining agreements
with our employees, and we have not experienced any work stoppages. We consider our relations with our
employees to be good.
Reports to Security Holders
We file annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
other items and amendments, thereto with the Commission. We provide free access to these filings, as
soon as reasonably practicable after filing, on our Internet web site located at www.newbridgegv.com. In
addition, the public may read and copy any materials we file with the Commission at its Public Reference
Room at 100 F Street N.E., Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room by calling the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Commission
maintains its internet site www.sec.gov, which contains reports, proxy and information statements and our
other information regarding issuers like the Company. Information appearing on the Company’s website
is not part of any report that it files with the Commission.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
Not required for smaller reporting companies.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None
Item 2. Properties
The Company does not own any properties.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations in the
normal course of business. We are not currently a party to any legal proceeding that we believe would
have a material adverse effect on our business, our financial condition or our operating results.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
PART II
Item 5.

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information
Our shares are currently traded on the OTC Markets (“OTCQB”) under the symbol “NBGV”. The
following table presents the high and low bid prices for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up, mark-down, or commissions and may
not necessarily represent actual transactions.
Year ended December 31, 2017

High

Fourth quarter
Third quarter
Second quarter
First quarter

$
$
$
$

Year ended December 31, 2016

Low

2.15
3.00
6.00
7.95

$
$
$
$

High

Fourth quarter
Third quarter
Second quarter
First quarter

$
$
$
$
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36.00
82.50
66.00
90.00

0.50
0.61
2.40
4.50
Low

$
$
$
$

12.00
31.50
52.50
36.00

Holders
As of December 31, 2017, we had approximately 397 shareholders of record holding 3,695,604 shares of
our common stock. As of December 31, 2016, we had approximately 387 shareholders of record holding
854,338 shares of our common stock. The number of record holders was determined from the records of
our transfer agent and does not include beneficial owners of common stock whose shares are held in the
names of various security brokers, dealers, and registered clearing agencies.
Dividends
The Company has not paid any cash dividends to date, and has no intention of paying any cash dividends
on the Common Stock in the foreseeable future. The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to
the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and to certain limitations imposed under Delaware
law. The timing, amount and form of dividends, if any, will depend upon, among other things, the
Company’s results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, and other factors deemed
relevant by the Board of Directors. The Company intends to retain any future earnings for use in its
business. The Company has never paid dividends on its Common Stock.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
The Company is required to measure and recognize compensation expense for all share-based payment
awards (including stock options) made to employees and directors based on estimated fair value.
Compensation expense for equity-classified awards is measured at the grant date based on the fair value
of the award and is recognized as an expense in earnings over the requisite service period.
In connection with consummation of the Share Exchange, the Company terminated the 2008 Stock
Incentive Plan (“2008 Plan”) put in place by the Company prior to the Share Exchange and plans to adopt
a new Stock Incentive Plan in the near future. As of December 31, 2016, the Company did not have any
outstanding options or other awards. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had 3,017,086 outstanding
options.
Performance Graph
As a smaller reporting company, as defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and in Item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are electing scaled disclosure
reporting obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information requested by this Item.
Sale of Registered Securities on Form S-1
In June 2016, the Securities and Exchange Commission declared the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 for the registration of 166,667 (5,000,000 pre-reverse stock split shares) of its common stock
to be sold at a price of $27.60 ($0.92 pre-reverse stock split) share.
In July 2016, the Company sold a total of 50,135 (1,504,050 pre-reverse stock split) shares of its common
stock pursuant to the Registration Statement.
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In September 2016, the Company issued 3,333 (100,000 pre-reverse stock split) shares of registered
common stock to We Partners LLC of which 1,812 shares were for cash and 1,522 shares were for
services.
In August and September 2016, the Company issued a total of 11,000 shares of registered common stock
to JAX Capital Growth for services.
In December 2016, the Company issued 2,408 post-split shares of registered common stock to certain
service providers in exchange for services. No cash proceeds were received in connection with such
issuances. These shares were recorded for book purposes at $21.90 per share, which represented the
market price of the Company’s stock at the time of issuance.
In December 2016, the Company issued 5,000 shares of registered common stock to JAX Capital Growth
for services. These shares were recorded for book purposes at $16.50 per share, which represented the
market price of the Company’s stock at the time of issuance.
A post-effective amendment to the registration statement file number 333-210325 was filed on March 6,
2018.
Except as specifically stated above, all shares sold or issued under the Registration Statement were booked
at $27.60 ($0.92 pre-reverse stock split) per share. The proceeds from such sales were used as stated in
the Registration Statement.
Recent Issuances of Unregistered Securities
On May 18, 2017, the Company entered into an Equity Purchase Agreement dated May 9, 2017
(“Purchase Agreement”) with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC (“Kodiak”), whereby Kodiak agreed to
purchase up to 10,000,000 shares of its common stock, par value $0.0001 per share at a price of $0.10 per
shares (the resulting in an aggregate gross proceeds to the Company of up to $1,000,000. In addition, the
Company extended a convertible promissory note in the amount of $50,000. On September 29, 2017, the
Company issued Kodiak 161,290 shares of its common stock in full settlement of that agreement.
On or about September 26, 2017 the Company entered into Subscription Agreements (“Subscription
Agreements”) with Zat Invest, Hans Kjaer Holding and Brian Mertz for the purchase of 666,632 shares of
restricted common stock for a total consideration of $201,280.
Effective December 1, 2017, we entered into the Purchase Agreement, dated November 22, 2017, with
Kodiak. Under the Purchase Agreement, we may from time to time, in our discretion, sell shares of our
common stock to GHS for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $2,000,000. Unless terminated earlier,
Kodiak’s purchase commitment automatically terminated on the earlier of the date on which Kodiak shall
have purchased our shares pursuant to the Purchase Agreement for an aggregate purchase price of
$2,000,000, or December 31, 2020. The Purchase Agreement, the Registration Rights Agreement and the
Advisory Services Agreement was terminated on January 31, 2018, effective March 2, 2018.
On December 14, 2017, the Company issued 150,000 restricted shares of common stock to PCG
Holdings, Inc., 100,000 restricted shares to Mark Mersman and 100,000 restricted shares to Scott Cox in
exchange for services. In addition, Mr. Mersman and Mr. Cox received options to purchase an additional
3,017,085 of the Company’s common shares total to Mr. Mersman and Mr. Cox. These options are
subject to vesting based upon the achievement of certain milestones.
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The Company relied on the statutory exemption from registration found in Section 4(a)(2) of the
Securities Act and comparable Utah and Delaware state provisions and also the provisions of Regulation S
for offerings and issuances to non-U.S. persons. The Company believes that all purchasers would have
qualified as accredited investors to the extent that the offerings were conducted under Regulation D. The
Company made no state or SEC filings for such offerings and issuances. No underwriters were used in
such offerings.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
As a smaller reporting company, as defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and in Item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are electing scaled disclosure
reporting obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information requested by this Item.
Implications of being an Emerging Growth Company
As a company with less than $1.0 billion in revenue during our last completed fiscal year, we qualify as an
“emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS
Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting requirements that
are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These reduced reporting requirements that are
available to us include:
•
an exemption from compliance with the auditor attestation requirement on the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting;
•
an exemption from compliance with any requirement that the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board may adopt regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the
auditor’s report providing additional information about the audit and the financial statements;
•

reduced disclosure about our executive compensation arrangements; and

•
an exemption from the requirements to obtain a non-binding advisory vote on executive
compensation or a stockholder approval of any golden parachute arrangements.
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take
advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for
complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging growth company can
delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private
companies. We are not choosing to “opt out” of this provision. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that
our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting
standards is irrevocable.
We will remain an “emerging growth company” until the last day of our fiscal year following the fifth
anniversary of the date of our first sale of common equity securities pursuant to an effective registration
under the Securities Act, or until the earliest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our total
annual gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (ii) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined
in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which would occur if the market value of our
ordinary shares that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our most
recently completed second fiscal quarter or (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in
non-convertible debt during the preceding three year
10

period.
Until such time, however, we cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive
because we may rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a
result, there may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more
volatile. Because we have elected to take advantage of certain of the reduced disclosure obligations and
may elect to take advantage of other reduced reporting requirements in future filings, the information that
we provide to our stockholders may be different than you might receive from other public reporting
companies in which you hold equity interests.
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
This discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting our consolidated operating results, financial
condition, liquidity and capital resources during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. This
discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and footnotes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K.
Summary
The following discussion highlights the results of operations for NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc. and the
principal factors that have affected our financial condition as well as our liquidity and capital resources
for the periods described, and provides information that management believes is
relevant for an assessment and understanding of the statements of financial condition and results of
operations presented herein. The following discussion and analysis are based on the Company’s audited
financial statements contained in this Report, which we have prepared in accordance with United States
generally accepted accounting principles. You should read the discussion and analysis together with such
financial statements and the related notes thereto.
Results of Operations
The Company’s consolidated operations include the operations of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc. and
its wholly owned subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company had a net loss of $4,201,111, which consisted of
a net loss from continuing operations of $2,257,094 and a net loss from discontinued operations of
$1,944,017. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company had a net loss of $4,038,605, which
consisted of a net loss from continuing operations of $1,397,441 and a net loss from discontinued
operations of $2,641,164.
Operating expenses consisted of selling, general and administrative expenses on NewBridge, mostly
related to stock compensation to management and third-party service providers. It is difficult to compare
2017 and 2016 due to the major changes in the operations of the Company with the sale of subsidiaries
during 2017. The Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses are expected to be substantially
less during 2018 than in 2017 due to the reduced operations.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company has incurred significant net losses and negative cash flows from operations. For the
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years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, we had net losses of $4,201,111 and $4,038,605, respectively.
At December 31, 2017, we had an accumulated deficit of $8,612,112.
At December 31, 2017, we had cash of $4,143. We have financed our operations principally through the
sale of common stock. During 2017 and 2016, we received net proceeds of $559,752 and $3,139,445,
respectively, from the issuance of shares of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.’s common stock.
We could potentially use our available financial resources sooner than we currently expect, and we may
incur additional indebtedness to meet future financing needs. Adequate additional funding may not be
available to us on acceptable terms or at all. In addition, although we anticipate being able to obtain
additional financing through non-dilutive means, we may be unable to do so. Our failure to raise capital as
and when needed could have significant negative consequences for our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Our future capital requirements and the adequacy of available funds will depend on
many factors, including those set forth in the section titled “Risk Factors.”
The following table summarizes our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Cash used in operating activities
Cash provided by finance activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net increase (decrease) in cash

$

$

For the Year Ended December 31,
2017
2016
(2,484,391)
$
(2,876,044)
1,079,940
3,139,445
5,968
5,978
(1,398,483)
$
269,379

These conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements
We do not maintain off-balance sheet arrangements nor do we participate in any non-exchange traded
contracts requiring fair value accounting treatment. The Company has no off-balance sheet financing
arrangements as of December 31, 2017.
New Accounting Standards
For details of applicable new accounting standards, please, refer to Note 3 of our Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect both the recorded
values of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the revenues recognized and
expenses incurred during the reporting period. Our estimates and assumptions affect our recognition of
income taxes, the carrying value of our long-lived assets and our provision for certain contingencies. We
evaluate the reasonableness of these estimates and assumptions continually based on a combination of
historical information and other information that comes to our attention that may vary our outlook for the
future. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions.
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We suggest that the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, as described in Note 3 of our
Consolidated Financial Statements, be read in conjunction with this Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. We believe the critical accounting policies
that most impact our consolidated financial statements are described in Note 3 of our Consolidated
Financial Statements.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
As a smaller reporting company, as defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and in Item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are electing scaled disclosure
reporting obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information requested by this Item.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Our consolidated financial statements, together with accompanying footnotes, and the report of our
independent registered public accounting firm, are set forth on page F-1.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act.”)) concluded that as of December 31, 2017, our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports
filed or submitted by us under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported,
within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our principal executive and financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Internal control over financial reporting, defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) promulgated
under the Exchange Act, is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company’s principal
executive officer and its principal financial officer and effected by the Company’s board of directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States and includes those policies and procedures that:
•
•

•

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide
absolute assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. To mitigate the current limited resources and limited employees, we rely
heavily on direct management oversight of transactions, along with the use of legal and accounting
professionals. As we grow, we expect to increase our number of employees and engage outsourced
accounting professionals, which will enable us to implement adequate segregation of duties within the
internal control framework.
During 2017, management of the Company conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control - Integrated Framework-2013.
As part of this assessment, management has taken into consideration that we are a small company, and due
to the fact that we have a limited number of employees, we are not able to have proper segregation of
duties and have limited technical accounting research capabilities. Based on this assessment, management
has determined that internal controls were not effective. The Company has engaged a third-party service
provider with the necessary financial expertise to provide additional oversight of financial reporting. In
addition, the board of directors, as part of their review of the quarterly and annual financial statements,
has complete access to the detailed financial information of the Company for further review and
verification of all financial transactions during the reporting periods. Management believes these changes
and detailed review by the board of directors enhance our effectiveness over financial reporting to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States.
Attestation Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
This annual report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of our independent registered
public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not
subject to attestation by our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to an exemption for
non-accelerated filers set forth in Section 989G of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal year and quarter
ended December 31, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information
Subsequent issuances
On February 6, 2018, the Board approved the vesting of 15,000 shares and 2,817,085 options. On March
2, 2018 Mr. Mersman and Cox each exercised the option to purchase 1,000,000 shares each. These
purchased shares were issued on March 5, 2018.
On February 6, 2018, we entered into an Equity Financing Agreement (“Financing Agreement”) with
GHS Investments, LLC (“GHS”), whereby GHS agreed to purchase, through puts made from time to time
by the Company, up to $2,000,000 worth of the shares of the Company’s common stock, par value
$0.0001 per share. In accordance with the terms of the Financing Agreement and the Registration Rights
Agreement dated February 6, 2018 between the Company and GHS (“Registration Agreement”), the
Company is required to register the Shares on Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) as a condition precedent to GHS’s obligation to close on the purchase of the Shares.
In February 2018, the Company sold 301,250 shares of its common stock pursuant to a private placement
to six (6) accredited investors at $0.40 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $120,500.
On February 19, 2018, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”)
with Elevated Portfolio Holdings, LLC (“Elevated Portfolio”), whereby Elevated agreed to purchase the
assets of Elevated Portfolio for 2,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per
share. The shares were valued at $2,700,000 based on the market price of $1.35 per share on February 19,
2018. Elevated Portfolio offers medically focused education modules to health professionals about the use
of cannabis for health and wellness. The Purchase Agreement was closed on March 2, 2018. As a result,
the Company is able to use the acquired intellectual property assets to continue its consulting business and
provide key educational products as part of its service offering.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Our board of directors is responsible for the overall management of the Company and appoints the
executive officers who are responsible for administering our day-to-day operations. Our executive
officers and directors are elected annually for a one year term or until their respective successors are duly
elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal. The following table identifies our
directors and officers as of December 31, 2017.
Name

Age

Position

Term of Office

Brian Mertz

42

Director

One year

Ole Sigetty

58

Director

One year

Ben Esque

41

Director

One year

Mark Mersman

50

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer

N/A

Scott Cox

45

Director, President

NA

Robert K. Bench

68

Chief Financial Officer

N/A

Executive Officers
On October 11, 2017, Brian Mertz resigned as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. The resignation
was not related to any disagreements with the Company on any matter relating to its operations, policies,
practices or any issues regarding financial disclosures, accounting or legal matters.
On October 18, 2017, the Board appointed Mark Mersman as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Information Officer and Scott Cox as the Company’s President and Chief Operating Officer.
Mark Mersman, Chief Executive Officer - Mr. Mersman currently serves as a consultant to three ancillary
cannabis companies. Mark has also been providing consulting services for two cannabis focused
investment funds since 2016. In early 2017 Mark worked with David Nagel, Esq. of Feldmann Nagel,
LLC, a prominent cannabis law firm, to lobby for the passage of Colorado S.B. 25. The bill was passed
and a portion of the Colorado Marijuana Tax Cash Fund was appropriated to education for the CO public
school system. Previously, Mr. Mersman co-founded and served as President of Unity Resources, LLC and
Legacy Income Properties, LLC. Mr. Mersman had been leading a team in evaluating and investing in
minerals and royalties for families and institutions. Mr. Mersman has formed and has managed over 10
private investment funds, altogether encompassing over $10 million and in excess of 100 mineral and
royalty acquisitions and divestitures. Mr. Mersman was founder and President of Mersman Capital
Management, Inc., a private wealth advisory firm formed in September 2007 that provided portfolio
management for a small group of high net worth individuals. Mersman Capital Management’s portfolio
was sold and transitioned to another advisory firm in December of 2015. Prior to forming Mersman
Capital Management, Mr. Mersman served as Regional Vice President for Fisher Investments from April
2000 to September 2007, where he managed a combined client portfolio of representing over $200 million.
Mr. Mersman has previously held FINRA licenses 7, 63, and 65, and held the designation
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of Chartered Retirement Planning Counselor. Mr. Mersman is a graduate with a B.B.A. in Marketing and
Finance from the University of Arkansas.
Scott Cox, President - Mr. Cox has over 20 years of experience in the management and operations of
public and private companies. Since October 2015, Mr. Cox has served as a Principal in Basin Capital,
Inc., a private family office focused on the acquisition and divestiture of oil and gas properties and various
entrepreneurial ventures. Prior to Basin Capital, from July 2013 to October 2015, Mr. Cox served as Vice
President of Land for Breitling Energy Corporation where he was instrumental in acquiring over $20
million in producing and non-producing oil and gas properties. Prior to that he served as Director of
Operations for Frontier Oilfield Services, Inc from September 2012 where he helped lead a public
company acquisition and roll-up of 2 privately owned oilfield service companies. Mr. Cox attended
Eastern New Mexico University where he studied Business Administration.
Robert Bench, Chief Financial Officer - Robert K. Bench has served as our Chief Financial Officer since
October 2007 and as a member of our Board of Directors from December 2007 until 2014. Mr. Bench
was a founder and since April 1999 has been a managing member of BayHill Group LC, a consulting
group focused on assisting microcap companies (“BayHill Group”). From January 2005 until April 2007,
he also served as the Chief Financial Officer of Innuity, Inc. (INNU), software as a service company that
delivers applications for small business. From November 2000 until August 2004, he also served as Chief
Financial Officer of The SCO Group (SCOX), a developer and marketer of software applications and
operating systems. Mr. Bench is a certified public accountant and holds a bachelor degree in accounting
from Utah State University.
Non-Employee Directors
Brian Mertz, Director - Mr. Mertz has over twenty years of experience working with start-up enterprises
where he has served on management teams, boards of directors and in executive level management
positions. Mr. Mertz has special qualifications within international negotiations, management, merger &
acquisitions, public offerings, sales, business development and business-to-business marketing. Currently,
Mr. Mertz serves as CEO of Medican APS, a Danish Medical Cannabis cultivator as well as Chairman of
the Board for Nube Serena, an Uruguay based industrial Hemp producer. Mr. Mertz served as Chief
Operations Officer of the Nasdaq listed IT-security company EuroTrust in the period of 2001 to 2004,
where he worked with the company’s largest shareholder, VeriSign (now Symantec). Mr. Mertz was the
co-founder and Chief Executive Officer of Guava A/S, a Danish online marketing company listed on the
Danish Stock Exchange from the period 2004 to 2009 and Chief Executive Officer of the Norwegian
listed entertainment company Gaming Innovation Group Inc. during the period 2012 to 2014. Mr Mertz is
educated with a BA in Organization and Marketing from Niels Brock Business College in Copenhagen,
Denmark.
Ole Sigetty, Director - Mr. Sigetty is an experienced professional with more than 30 years as an attorneyat-law in Denmark. Mr. Sigetty is admitted to the Supreme Court of Denmark where he appears regularly.
Mr. Sigetty is a senior partner of the Law Firm Németh & Sigetty A/S, Copenhagen, Denmark. During his
professional work, Mr. Sigetty, has practiced business law and litigation with a focus on M&A
transactions, contract law, and public listings. Mr. Sigetty has served on several boards as both director
chairman including the position of chairman of the board of Guava A/S, a Danish online marketing
company listed on the Danish Stock Exchange in the period 2004-2009, director and chairman of the
board Norwegian listed entertainment company, Gaming Innovation Group Inc., in the period 2012-2013,
director and chairman of the board of International Food Science Center A/S and director of MMC Optical
A/S, director of Seven Seas Clothing Co. A/S. Mr. Sigetty holds a Master of Arts in Journalism and
Public Affairs from the
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American University in Washington D.C.
Benjamin Esque, Director - Mr. Esque is serial entrepreneur with a breadth of experience in the health
care industry with a focus in the medical device and diagnostic arena. He has been involved in multiple
startups and has a distinct experience in business development, product distribution licensing, and sales
and marketing strategy. Mr. Esque has held multiple positions within the pharmaceutical, medical device,
and biotechnology diagnostic industries. Since 2014, he has served in key account management positions
for Abiomed (ABMD), an S&P 400 medical device implant company. Previously, Mr. Esque was
responsible for various strategic and training initiatives with Edwards Lifesciences (EW) pertaining to the
US commercial launch of Transcatheter Heart Valves. Prior to that he led the global training and
development for a division Johnson & Johnson and was a regional sales manager with KOS
Pharmaceuticals, which was acquired by Abbot Laboratories for $4.1b. Mr. Esque holds a degree in
business administration with a concentration in marketing from the University of California.
Additional Directors
On March 15, 2017, the Company filed a Schedule 14C Definitive Information Statement relating to the
election of Directors Allen J. Vestergard, Anette Nogaard, Kristoffer Ewald and Jorgen Bulh Rasmussen
to our Board of Directors for a term of one year. The new directors were elected pursuant to an action by
written consent in lieu of a meeting dated March 14, 2017 executed by stockholders of the Company
holding a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock and is effective
as of April 5, 2017. The election of the directors follows the resignation of Soren Jonassen and Morten
Krarup.
Effective October 18, 2017, Directors Mads H. Fredericksen, Jorgen Buhl Rasmussen, Kristoffer Ewald
and Allan J. Vestergaard resigned from the Board of Directors. Directors Annette Nogaard and Morton
Albaek also resigned later in 2017. The resignations were not related to any disagreements with the
Company on any matter relating to its operations, policies, practices or any issues regarding financial
disclosures, accounting or legal matters.
Director Independence
Our board of directors currently consists of five members. We are not currently subject to listing
requirements of any national securities exchange that has requirements that a majority of the board of
directors be “independent.” Nevertheless, our board of directors has determined that all of our directors
qualify as “independent” directors in accordance with listing requirements. In making these
determinations, our board of directors reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and
us with regard to each director’s business and personal activities and relationships as they may relate to us
and our management. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.
Except as discussed above, to our knowledge, there have been no events under any bankruptcy act,
criminal proceedings and no federal or state judicial or administrative orders, judgments, decrees or
findings, no violations of any federal or state securities laws, and no violation of any federal commodities
law material to the evaluation of the ability and integrity of any director (existing or proposed), executive
officer (existing or proposed), promoter or control person of the Company during the past 10 years.
To our knowledge, there are no material proceedings to which any director (existing or proposed), officer
(existing or proposed), affiliate of the Company, any holder of 5% or more of our currently outstanding
common stock, any associate of any such director or officer, or any affiliate of such security holder that is
adverse to us or has a material interest adverse to us. There are no family relationships among any of the
officers and directors.
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Role of Board in Risk Oversight Process
Risk assessment and oversight are an integral part of our governance and management processes. Our
board of directors encourages management to promote a culture that incorporates risk management into
our corporate strategy and day-to-day business operations. Management discusses strategic and
operational risks at regular management meetings and conducts specific strategic planning and review
sessions during the year that include a focused discussion and analysis of the risks facing us. Throughout
the year, senior management reviews these risks with the board of directors at regular board meetings as
part of management presentations that focus on particular business functions, operations or strategies, and
presents the steps taken by management to mitigate or eliminate such risks.
Our board of directors does not have a standing risk management committee, but rather administers this
oversight function directly through our board of directors as a whole, as well as through various standing
committees of our board of directors that address risks inherent in their respective areas of oversight. In
particular, our board of directors is responsible for monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure, and
our audit committee is responsible for overseeing our major financial risk exposures and the steps our
management has taken to monitor and control these exposures. The audit committee also monitors
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. Our nominating and governance committee monitors
the effectiveness of our corporate governance guidelines and considers and approves or disapproves any
related-person transactions. Our compensation committee assesses and monitors whether any of our
compensation policies and programs has the potential to encourage excessive risk-taking.
Corporate Governance
Board Committees
Our Board of Directors has a standing Audit Committee. To date, our Board of Directors has not
established a Compensation, Nominating or Governance Committee, in part because our Board of
Directors believes that, at this stage of our development, all of our directors should be actively involved in
the matters which would be addressed by such a committee. We may, in the future, establish a
Compensation, Nominating or Governance Committee. We believe each of the directors serving on our
Audit Committee is an independent director pursuant to NASD Rule 4200(a) (15).
Audit Committee. Soren Jonassen and Brian Mertz serve as members of the Audit Committee, with Mr.
Jonassen serving as Chairman. Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Jonassen satisfies the
criteria for an audit committee financial expert under Rule 401(e) of Regulation S-B promulgated by the
SEC. Each member of our Audit Committee is able to read and understand fundamental financial
statements, including our consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations and statements of cash
flows. The functions of the Audit Committee are primarily to: (a) facilitate the integrity of our financial
statements and internal controls, (b) oversee our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
related to accounting and/or financial controls, (c) evaluate our independent registered public accounting
firm’s qualifications and independence, (d) oversee the performance of any internal audit function that we
may adopt and oversee our independent registered public accounting firm, and (e) review our systems of
disclosure controls and procedures, internal controls over financial reporting, and compliance with ethical
standards related to accounting and/or financial controls we have adopted. Our Board of Directors has
adopted a written charter for our Audit Committee, a copy of which is available on the Company’s
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website, www.newbridgegv.com. Except as otherwise required by applicable laws, regulations or listing
standards or our Audit Committee Charter, major decisions regarding our activities and operations are
considered by our Board of Directors as a whole.
Director Nominations. We have not effected any material changes to the procedures by which our
stockholders may recommend nominees to our board of directors. Our board of directors does not have a
policy with regards to the consideration of any director candidates recommended by our stockholders. Our
board of directors has determined that it is in the best position to evaluate our company’s requirements as
well as the qualifications of each candidate when our board considers a nominee for a position on our
board of directors. If stockholders wish to recommend candidates directly to our board, they may do so by
sending communications to the president of our Company at the address of our executive offices.
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our employees, officers and
directors, including those officers responsible for financial reporting. The code of business conduct and
ethics is available on our website at www.newbridgegv.com. We expect that any amendments to the code,
or any waivers of its requirements, will be disclosed on our website. The reference to our web address
does not constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained at or available through our
website.
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors and executive officers, and
any persons who own more than 10% of our common stock to file with the Commission reports of
beneficial ownership and changes in beneficial ownership of common stock. Directors and officers are
required by Commission regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.
Section 16(a) filings in connection with the shares issued in the Share Exchange have not been made.
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
None of our directors or executive officers has been convicted in a criminal proceeding, excluding traffic
violations or similar misdemeanors, or has been a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding during
the past ten years that resulted in a judgment, decree or final order enjoining the person from future
violations of, or prohibiting activities subject to, federal or state securities laws, or a finding of any
violation of federal or state securities laws, except for matters that were dismissed without sanction or
settlement. Except as set forth in our discussion below in “Transactions with Related Persons; Promoters
and Certain Control Persons; Director Independence,” none of our directors, director nominees or
executive officers has been involved in any transactions with us or any of our directors, executive officers,
affiliates or associates which are required to be disclosed pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth information concerning all cash and non-cash compensation awarded to,
earned by or paid to the named person for services rendered in all capacities during the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016. No other executive officers received total annual compensation in excess
of $100,000.
Nonequity
Incentive
Bonus Stock
Option
Comp
Person
Year Salary ($) ($) Awards ($) Awards ($)
($)
All Other Comp ($) Total ($)
Mark Mersman (1) 2017

$ 25,000

$ 51,000

$ 136,286

$ 212,286

Scott Cox (2)

$ 25,000

$ 51,000

$ 136,286

$ 212,286

2017

Morten Krarup (3) 2016 $ 123,700
2017 $ 82,000

$ 123,700
$ 82,000

Ulrik Moll (4)

$ 117,735

2016 $ 117,735

Robert K. Bench (5) 2016 $ 90,500
2017 $ 112,000
Brian Mertz (6)

2016 $ 40,500
2017 $ 124,055

$ 230,002
$ 88,506

$ 90,500
$ 112,000
$ 270,502
$ 212,561

(1) Mr. Mersman has served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer since October 18, 2017.
(2) Mr. Cox has served as the Company’s President and Chief Operating Officer since October 18,
2017.
(3) Mr. Krarup was appointed as the Company’s Chief Business Development Officer on July 1,
2015
(4) Mr. Moll served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer from June 26, 2015 to July 6, 2016.
(5) Mr. Bench has served as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer since November 30, 2008.
(6) Mr. Mertz served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer from July 6, 2016 to October 18,
2017.
Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2017
On October 12, 2017, pursuant to its 2017 Equity Incentive Plan, the Company granted options to Mark
Merman, CEO and Scott Cox, President and COO, to purchase 1,508,543 shares of common stock each
(3,017,086 total). The options have an exercise price of $0.01 per share and expire December 31, 2018.
The options are exercisable upon achievement of various milestones. As of December 31, 2017, no
options were exercisable. The combined stock options were valued at $1,518,884 using the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model. The Company recognized share-based compensation on these stock options of
$272,572 during 2017 and has $1,246,312 of unrecognized share-based compensation that will be
recognized ratable over the year ended December 31, 2018.
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Employment Agreements
On October 18, 2017, the Board appointed Mark Mersman as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Information Officer and Scott Cox as the Company’s President and Chief Operating Officer. The
Company entered into employment agreements with Mark Mersman and Scott Cox. The agreements
called for the initial issuance of 100,000 shares to each of them and up to an additional 75,000 shares and
1,508,543 options to each based on the meeting of certain milestones. The 100,000 shares to each of Mr.
Mersman and Mr. Cox were issued on December 14, 2017. 15,000 shares and 2,817,085 options vested
on February 6, 2018, and Mr. Mersman and Mr. Cox exercised the option to purchase 1,000,000 shares
each on March 2, 2018. These shares were issued on March 5, 2018.
The Company entered into a six-month employment agreement with Brian Mertz, effective July 1, 2016
to December 31, 2016. The agreement called for the issuance of 1,389 post-split shares of common stock
per month (8,334 total), which were issued and fully expensed during 2016.
During November 2016, the Board of Directors approved stock payments of 200 post-split shares of
common stock to each of ten employees. The shares were issued December 14, 2016.
During August 2016, the Company entered into an agreement with Peter Holvad, effective September 1,
2016 to February 17, 2017. The agreement called for the issuance of 500 post-split shares of common
stock. The shares were issued December 14, 2016, and the stock compensation was recognized ratably
over the contract period.
During November 2016, the Board of Directors approved a stock payment of 356 post-split shares of
common stock to Helle Wittrup based on a consulting agreement.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were 3,017,086 and 0 options outstanding, respectively.
Compensation of Directors
Director Compensation Table
The following table sets forth information for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, regarding the
compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to the Company’s non-employee directors. Compensation
for those directors that also are part of the Company’s management team is set forth in the section entitled
“Executive Compensation” below.
Name
Mads H. Frederiksen
Soren Jonassen
Ole Sigetty
Morten Krarup
Morton Albaek
Allen Vertergaard
Jorgen Rasmussen
Annette Norgaard
Kristoffer Ewald
(1)

Year
2017
2016
2017
2016
2017
2016
2017
2016
2017
2016
2017
2017
2017
2017

Fees Earned
or Paid in
Cash($)
$-

Option
Awards
($)(1)
$-

Stock
Awards
($)
$ 5,000
15,000
10,000
5,000
10,000
10,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
5,000
2,900
2,900

Total($)
$ 5,000
15,000
10,000
5,000
10,000
10,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
5,000
2,900
2,900

There were no Option Awards to non-executive directors during the years ended
December 31, 2017 or 2016.

In August 2016, the Board of Directors approved stock compensation for the period July 1, 2016 to June
30, 2017. Each of the four board members would receive 725 post-split shares of common stock, the
chairman would receive 1,087 post-split shares of common stock and the secretary would receive 272
post-split shares of common stock. The shares were issued during 2017, prior to the end of the contract
period.
In August 2016, the Board of Directors approved stock payments for services to Directors Soren Jonassen
(1,033 post-split shares) and Ole Sigetty (2,138 post-split shares) for professional services from July 1,
2016 to June 30, 2017. The shares were issued during 2017, prior to the end of the contract period.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters
The following table sets forth information relating to the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock at
April 2, 2018, by:
•
•
•
•

each person, or group of affiliated persons, known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of the
Company’s outstanding shares of common stock;
each of our directors;
each of our named executive officers; and
all current directors and executive officers as a group;

The number of shares beneficially owned by each entity, person, director or executive officer is
determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, and the information is not necessarily indicative of
beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Under such rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares
over which the individual has sole or shared voting power or investment power as well as any shares that
the individual has the right to acquire within 60 days through the exercise of any stock option, warrants or
other rights. Except as otherwise indicated, and subject to applicable community property laws, the
persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common
stock held by such person.
The percentage of shares beneficially owned is computed on the basis of 7,996,854 shares of common
stock outstanding March 30, 2018. Shares of common stock that a person has the right to acquire within
60 days of March 30, 2018 are deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage ownership
of the person holding such rights, but are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person, except with respect to the percentage ownership of all directors
and executive officers as a group.
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Name and Address of Beneficial
Owner (1)

Number of
Shares
Beneficially
Owned (2)

Number of
Shares
Exercisable
Within 60 Days

Number of
Shares
Beneficially
Owned

Percentage
of Beneficial
Ownership

5% and Greater Stockholders
Elevated Portfolio Holdings, LLC
Memp ApS
Other Officers and Directors
Mark Mersman
Scott Cox
Brian Mertz (3)
Ben Esque
Robert Bench (4)
Ole Sigetty (5)
All current directors and
executive officers as a group
(six persons)

2,000,000
1,233,499

1,100,000
1,100,000
336,576
—
29,570
19,676

—
—

2,000,000
1,233,499

25.0%
15.4%

583,543
583,542
—
30,000
—

1,683,543
1,683,542
336,576
30,000
29,570
19,676

21.1%
21.1%
4.2%
*
*
*

2,585,822

32.34%

Indicates beneficial ownership of less than 1% of the total outstanding common stock.
(1) The address is the address of the Company, 626 East 1820 North, Orem, UT 84097.
Except as indicated, each person has sole voting and/or investment power over the shares listed,
(2) subject to applicable community property laws. There are no options granted or outstanding.
(3) Mr. Mertz was the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. This amount Includes 9,365 shares owned by
World Wide Investment Fund Ltd., 21,467 shares owned by Stratega ApS, 5,500 shares owned by
Growthcom ApS and 733 shares held by the DTC on behalf of Hansard Pension Fund which may be
deemed to be beneficially owned by Mr. Mertz who is a control person in each company.
(4) Includes 300 shares owned by Vector Capital, LLC, an entity controlled by Mr. Bench, President and
Chief Financial Officer
(5) Includes 2,222 shares owned by FPP ApS, an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Sigetty, a member of
the Board of Directors
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Transactions with Related Persons
On May 18, 2017, the Company entered into an Equity Purchase Agreement dated May 9, 2017 (“First
Purchase Agreement”) with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC (“Kodiak”), whereby Kodiak agreed to purchase
up to 10,000,000 shares of its common stock, par value $0.0001 per share at a price of $0.10 per shares
(the resulting in an aggregate gross proceeds to the Company of up to $1,000,000. In addition, the
Company extended a convertible promissory note in the amount of $50,000. On September 29, 2017, this
First Purchase Agreement was terminated and the Company issued to Kodiak 161,290 shares of its
common stock in full settlement of those obligations.
Effective August 31, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement on Transfer of Shares (“Transfer
Agreement”) with NABUfit Finance ApS, a Danish company (“Buyer”) wherein the Company agreed to
sell to Buyer and Buyer agreed to purchase from the Company all of the issued and outstanding shares
owned by the Company in its three wholly owned subsidiaries, NABUFIT Denmark, NABUFIT IP and
NABUFIT China (the “Subsidiaries”). The purchase price paid by Buyer for the Subsidiaries was DKK
250,000 (USD $40,000), plus possible additional consideration of up to DKK 350,000 ($56,000) in
payments related to tax refunds due to the Subsidiaries in the fourth quarter of 2017. The actual tax
refund ended up being approximately $40,000.
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On or about September 26, 2017, the Company entered into Subscription Agreements (“Subscription
Agreements”) with Zat Invest, Hans Kjaer Holding and Brian Mertz for the purchase of 666,632 shares of
restricted common stock at a per share price of $0.31 per share for a total consideration of US $201,280.
The purchase of the shares was consummated on or about October 5, 2017.
On October 18, 2017, the Board appointed Mark Mersman as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Information Officer and Scott Cox as the Company’s President and Chief Operating Officer. The
Company entered into employment agreements with Mark Mersman and Scott Cox. The agreements
called for the initial issuance of 100,000 shares to each of them and up to an additional 75,000 shares and
1,508,543 options to each based on the meeting of certain milestones. The 100,000 shares to each of Mr.
Mersman and Mr. Cox were issued on December 14, 2017. Options for an additional 2,832,085 shares
vested on February 6, 2018, and Mr. Mersman and Mr. Cox exercised the option to purchase 1,000,000
shares each on March 2, 2018. These shares were issued on March 5, 2018.
Effective December 1, 2017, we entered into the Purchase Agreement, dated December 1, 2017, with
Kodiak. Under the Purchase Agreement, we could from time to time, in our discretion, sell shares of our
common stock to Kodiak for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $2,000,000. This Purchase Agreement was
terminated by the Company on February 1, 2018, effective as of March 2, 2018.
On February 19, 2018, we entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) with
Elevated Portfolio Holdings, LLC (“Elevated Portfolio”), whereby Elevated Education Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, (“Elevated”) agreed to purchase the intellectual property assets of
Elevated Portfolio for 2,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per share.
Elevated Portfolio offers medically focused education modules to health professionals about the use of
cannabis for health and wellness. The Purchase Agreement was closed on March 5, 2018. Prior to the
acquisition of the intellectual property of Elevated Portfolio, Mark Mersman, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, served as a consultant to Elevated Portfolio since the company was founded.
We have a code of ethics, which was adopted by the Company before the consummation of the Share
Exchange and continues to apply to our directors, officers and employees, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer (each, a “Covered Person” and,
collectively, the “Covered Persons”). As provided in our code of ethics, each of our employees and
officers (other than our principal executive officer and principal financial officer) is responsible for
reporting to his or her immediate supervisor, and each director and each of our principal executive officer
and our principal financial officer is responsible for reporting to the chairman of the audit committee, if
such a committee is created, or, in the absence of an audit committee, to the chairman of our board of
directors, any potential conflict of interest. The audit committee chairman, if any, or the chairman of our
board of directors, as applicable, will determine if a conflict of interest exists, and if so determined, will
determine the necessary resolution of such conflict. We intend to re-evaluate our policies and procedures
relating to related party transactions, and anticipate adopting changes to our current written policy
providing for the formal procedures through which any such potential transaction will be evaluated.
Promoters and Control Persons
On August 29, 2016, the Company entered into a Consulting Services Agreement with JAX Capital
Growth, LLC to assist with public relations, financial consulting and corporate financial services.
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This Agreement expired December 19, 2016. The Company entered into a second Consulting Services
Agreement with JAX Capital Growth, LLC on December 15, 2016, which expired March 15, 2017. JAX
received 16,000 post-split shares of registered common stock for its services.
On August 19, 2016, the Company entered into a Private Placement and Advisory Agreement with
Arrowhead Capital Advisors, a division of Trump Securities, LLC (“Arrowhead”) for services related to
the sell of the Company’s securities. In exchange for its services, Arrowhead received $10,000 and will
be paid 10% of the aggregate amount of a Transaction, if and when closed. As of April 5, 2017 no
transaction had been closed.
On November 1, 2016, the Company entered into a Finders’ Fee Agreement with Newbridge Securities
Corporation (“Newbridge”) for services related to the sale of the Company’s securities. In exchange for
its services, Newbridge received $10,000 and would have been paid a cash fee of 10% of the aggregate
amount of an equity Transaction and 5% of the aggregate amount of a debt transaction, if and when
closed. Newbridge is no longer providing services for the Company. No transaction ever closed.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
In connection with consummation of the Share Exchange, the Company terminated the 2008 Stock
Incentive Plan (“2008 Plan”) put in place by the Company prior to the Share Exchange and plans to adopt
a new Stock Incentive Plan in the near future. As of the date of this filing, no options or other awards are
outstanding and therefore no such awards will be assumed in connection with the Share Exchange and no
awards are required to be cancelled.
Director Independence
Our board of directors currently consists of five members. We are not currently subject to listing
requirements of any national securities exchange that has requirements that a majority of the board of
directors be “independent.” Nevertheless, our board of directors has determined that all of our directors
qualify as “independent” directors in accordance with listing requirements. In making these
determinations, our board of directors reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and
us with regard to each director’s business and personal activities and relationships as they may relate to us
and our management. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.
Except as discussed above, to our knowledge, there have been no events under any bankruptcy act,
criminal proceedings and no federal or state judicial or administrative orders, judgments, decrees or
findings, no violations of any federal or state securities laws, and no violation of any federal commodities
law material to the evaluation of the ability and integrity of any director, executive officer, promoter or
control person of the Company during the past 10 years.
To our knowledge, there are no material proceedings to which any director, officer, affiliate of the
Company, any holder of 5% or more of our currently outstanding common stock, any associate of any
such director or officer, or any affiliate of such security holder that is adverse to us or has a material
interest adverse to us. There are no family relationships among any of the officers and directors.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
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Sadler, Gibb & Associates, LLC (“Sadler Gibb”) served as the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017. Principal accounting fees for
professional services rendered for us by Sadler Gibb for the years ended 2016 and 2017 are summarized
as follows:
2016 Audit fees
2017 Audit fees

$37,000
$38,822

Audit Fees. Audit fees were for professional services rendered in connection with the audit of the
financial statements included in our annual report on Form 10-K and review of the financial statements
included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and for services normally provided by our independent
registered public accounting firm in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.
Audit Related Fees. Audit related fees during 2017 were for professional services related to the S-1
filings. Audit related fees for 2017 were $4,300.
Tax and Other Fees. There were no tax or other fees paid during the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016.
Board of Directors Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures. All audit, audit-related, tax, and any other
services performed for us by our independent registered public accounting firm are subject to preapproval by the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and were pre-approved by the Audit
Committee prior to such services being rendered. Our Audit Committee determined that the services
provided by, and fees paid to, Sadler Gibb were compatible with maintaining the independent registered
public accounting firm’s independence.
Shareholder ratification of the selection of Sadler Gibb as our independent registered public accounting
firm is not required by our Bylaws or otherwise. However, the Audit Committee intends to submit the
selection of Sadler Gibb to our shareholders for ratification at our upcoming annual meeting of
shareholders as a matter of good corporate governance. If our shareholders fail to ratify the selection, the
Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the
Audit Committee in its discretion may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public
accounting firm at any time if the Audit Committee determines that such a change would be in the best
interests of NewBridge and our shareholders.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
Exhibit No.

Description and method of filing

3.1

Certificate of Incorporation of BayHill Capital Corporation, dated April 24, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to Form 8-K filed on April 30, 2008).

3.2

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation Registrant, filed on March 19,
2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Form 8-K filed on April 5, 2012).

3.3

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effective December 15, 2014
(incorporated by reference as Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K filed on December 24, 2014).

3.4

Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effective
July 3, 2015.*

3.5

Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effective
December 10, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on December 3, 2015)

3.6

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effective June 27, 2017 (incorporated
by references to Exhibit 3.6 to Form S-1 filed on July 31, 2017)

3.7

Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effective
November 21, 2017.

3.8

Bylaws of BayHill Capital Corporation, as adopted on May 12, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB filed on May 14, 2008)

10.1

Equity Purchase Agreement with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC dated May 8, 2017
(incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8K dated May 22, 2017)

10.2

Registration Rights Agreement with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC dated May 8, 2017
(incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8K dated May 22, 2017)

10.3

Securities Purchase Agreement with Power UP Lending Group LTD dated May 9, 2017
(incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8K dated May 24, 2017)

10.4

Convertible Promissory Note with Power UP Lending Group LTD dated May 9, 2017
(incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8K dated May 24, 2017)

10.5

Agreement on Transfer of Shares (incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K
filed on September 1, 2017)

10.6

Employment Agreement dated October 16, 2017 with Scott Cox**

10.7

Employment Agreement dated October 16, 2017 with Mark Mersman**
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Exhibit No. Description and method of filing
10.8

Equity Purchase Agreement with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC dated November 22, 2017
(incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8K filed on December 8, 2017)

10.9

Registrations Rights Agreement with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC dated November 22, 2017
(incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8K filed on December 8, 2017)

10.10

Advisory Services Agreement with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC**

10.11

Convertible Promissory Note with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC**

10.12

Amendment to Note with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC**

10.13

Settlement Agreement with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC**

10.14

Termination of Agreements with Kodiak Capital Group, LLC **

10.15

Equity Finance Agreement with GHS Capital dated February 6, 2018 (incorporated by
reference as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2018).

10.16

Registration Rights Agreement with GHS Capital dated February 6, 2018 (incorporated by
reference as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2018).

10.17

Asset Purchase Agreement with Elevated Portfolio Holdings, LLC dated February
(incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on February 27, 2018)

10.18

Form of Subscription Agreement for Private Placement**

14.1

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, adopted May 12, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 14.1 to
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
for the year ended June 30, 2008, filed September 12 and incorporated by reference).

31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of Registrant pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a))*
Certification of Principal Financial Officer of Registrant pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a))*
Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*
Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

31.2
32.1
32.2

* Filed herewith.
** To be filed by amendment.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
Date:

April 2, 2018

NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc., a Delaware
corporation
/S/ Mark Mersman
Mark Mersman, Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.
Date:

April 2, 2018

/S/ Robert K. Bench
Robert K. Bench, Chief Financial Officer

Date:

April 2, 2018

/S/ Mark Mersman
Mark Mersman, Chief Executive Officer, Chairman

Date:

April 2, 2018

/S/ Scott Cox
Scott Cox, President, Director

Date:

April 2, 2018

/S/ Ole Sigetty
Ole Sigetty, Director, Secretary

Date:

April 2, 2018

/S/ Brian Mertz
Brian Mertz, Director

Date:

April 2, 2018

/S/ Ben Esque
Ben Esque, Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.:
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc. (“the
Company”) as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year
period ended December 31, 2017 and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial
statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2017, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Explanatory Paragraph Regarding Going Concern
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring
losses from operations and has a net capital deficiency, all of which raises substantial doubt about its
ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in
Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S.
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
/s/ Sadler, Gibb & Associates, LLC
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2015.
Salt Lake City, UT
April 2, 2018
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NEWBRIDGE GLOBAL VENTURES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY NABUFIT GLOBAL, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, December 31,
2017
2016
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Current assets of discontinued operations
Total current assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Related party payables
Current liabilities of discontinued operations
Total current liabilities
Total Liabilities

$

4,143
7,500
11,643

$

9,707
72,250
4,127,562
4,209,519

$

11,643

$

4,209,519

$

43,335
70,034
1,988
115,357

$

36,998
63,519
4,733
2,493,960
2,599,210

$

115,357

$

2,599,210

Commitments and Contingencies
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, 400,000 shares authorized; no shares issued
and outstanding
Common stock $.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 3,695,604
and 854,338 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders' equity (deficit)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

$

-

-

-

-

370
8,508,028
(8,612,112)
(103,714)

85
6,055,755
(4,411,001)
(34,530)
1,610,309

11,643

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
F-3

4,209,519

NEWBRIDGE GLOBAL VENTURES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY NABUFIT GLOBAL, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2017
2016
Operating Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Total Operating Expenses

$

Loss from Operations

1,397,442
1,397,442
(1,397,442)

(179,880)
(417,090)
40,972
(555,998)

-

(2,257,094)

(1,397,442)

(5,883)
(1,938,134)
(1,944,017)

(2,641,163)
(2,641,163)

$

(4,201,111) $

(4,038,605)

$

(1.42)
(1.23)
(2.65) $

(2.05)
(3.87)
(5.92)

Net loss from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Loss on sale of discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss from discontinued operations

Net loss per common share - basic and diluted:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Total

$

(1,701,096)

Other Income (Expense):
Interest expense
Loss on debt settlement
Gain on derivative
Total Other Income (Expense)

Net Loss

1,701,096
1,701,096

Weighted average common shares
outstanding - basic and diluted

1,584,321

682,517

Comprehensive Loss:
Net Loss

$

(4,201,111) $

(4,038,605)

Other Comprehensive Income
Translation adjustments
Total Comprehensive Loss

$

34,530
(4,166,581) $

5,848
(4,032,757)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NEWBRIDGE GLOBAL VENTURES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY NABUFIT GLOBAL, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
647,908 $ 65
$

Balance at December 31, 2015
Stock issued for cash
Stock issued for services
Stock issued for share-based compensation
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Net loss

157,160
34,722
14,548
-

Balance at December 31, 2016

854,338

16
3
1
$ 85

Stock issued for cash
Stock issued for services
Stock issued for share-based compensation
Stock options issued for share-based compensation
Stock issued for convertible debt
Beneficial conversion feature on convertible debt
Stock issued for settlement of liabilities
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Net loss

786,123
370,228
203,716
1,423,968
57,231
-

79
37
20
142
7
-

Balance at December 31, 2017

3,695,604

$ 370

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
1,673,753

$

3,139,429
889,154
353,419
$

6,055,755

(4,038,605)
$

559,673
321,802
183,321
272,572
1,002,843
87,687
24,375
$

8,508,028

Accumulated
Deficit
(372,396) $

(4,411,001) $
(4,201,111)

$

(8,612,112) $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss
(40,378) $
5,848
-

3,139,445
889,157
353,420
5,848
(4,038,605)

(34,530) $
34,530
-

Total
1,261,044

1,610,309
559,752
321,839
183,341
272,572
1,002,985
87,687
24,382
34,530
(4,201,111)

$

(103,714)

NEWBRIDGE GLOBAL VENTURES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY NABUFIT GLOBAL, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2017
2016
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net loss

$ (4,201,111)
1,944,017

$ (4,038,605)
2,641,164

(2,257,094)

(1,397,441)

Stock issued for services

455,913
321,839

353,420
820,407

Stock issued for settlement of liabilities
Amortization of debt discount

24,382

-

170,013

-

Gain on derivative

(40,972)

-

Loss on debt settlement

417,090
24,353

-

Net loss from discontinued operations
Net loss from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Share-based compensation

Foreign currency transaction loss
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

64,750

126,500

Accounts payable

3,592

32,825

Accrued liabilities

6,515
-

61,367
4,733

Related party payables
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities - Continuing Operations
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities - Discontinued Operations

(809,619)

1,811

(1,674,772)

(2,877,855)

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

(2,484,391)

(2,876,044)

-

-

Proceeds from issuance of common stock for cash
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable

559,752

3,139,445

595,226

-

Payments to settle convertible notes payable

(75,038)

-

1,079,940
-

3,139,445
-

1,079,940

3,139,445

5,968

5,978

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities - Continuing Operations
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities - Discontinued Operations
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net Decrease in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Period
Cash at End of Period

$

(1,398,483)

269,379

1,402,626

1,133,247

4,143

$

1,402,626

87,686

$

-

Noncash Investing and Financing Information:
Beneficial conversion features on convertible debt

$

Derivative liabilities on convertible debt

107,334
559,334

Conversion of notes payable to common stock
Settlement of derivative liability
Stock issued for prepaid expenses
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash Paid for Interest
Cash Paid for Taxes

$

-

26,843

-

-

68,750

-

$

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NEWBRIDGE GLOBAL VENTURES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 — THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Financial Statement Presentation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include the
operations and balances of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc. (“NewBridge”) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries
NABUFIT Global ApS (“NABUFIT Denmark”), NABUFIT China Limited (“NABUFIT China”), and NABUFIT
IP ApS (“NABUFIT IP”) (collectively “NewBridge,” “we”, or “the Company”). NewBridge was incorporated in
May 1983 in the State of Colorado and re-incorporated in the State of Delaware in April 2008. On October 18,
2017, the shareholders holding a majority of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of common stock
approved an amendment to the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to change the name
of the Company to “NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.” (“Amendment”). The Amendment became effective on
November 21, 2017.
Nature of Operations — Effective August 30, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement on Transfer of
Shares (“Transfer Agreement”) whereby it sold all of the interest held in its operating subsidiaries NABUFIT
Denmark, NABUFIT China, and NABUFIT IP (“Operating Subsidiaries”) and consequently ceased its prior
operations (“Operations Sale”). See Note 5 – discontinued operations. Prior to the Operations Sale, the Company,
through its Operating Subsidiaries designed, manufactured and marketed the NABUFIT virtual training and fitness
products and services (“NABUFIT Products”). After completion of the Operations Sale, all of the Company’s
equity in the Operating Subsidiaries were transferred and all of its interests in the NABUFIT Product and the
associated technology and intellectual property ceased.
Following the Operations Sale, the Company commenced providing business consulting services to several
companies in the medical marijuana and cannabis related industries. These companies include an online company
which provides education to healthcare professionals regarding medical cannabis and the endocannabinoid system,
a distribution company focused on delivering best in class hemp oil and medical marijuana products and a wellness
center delivering medical recommendations to patient and sales of Cannabidiol “CBD” and hemp oil products.
In connection with such consulting agreements, the Company will provide the following services:
·
·
·
·
·

Strategic advisory and services;
Business services;
Marketing services;
Acquisition and development services; and
Strategic partnership and consolidation services.

NOTE 2 – GOING CONCERN
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared with the recognition that there is
considerable doubt about whether the Company can continue as a going concern. As shown in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, the Company incurred a net loss of $4,201,111 for the year ended December 31,
2017 and has an accumulated deficit of $8,612,112 at December 31, 2017. The Company also used cash in
operating activities of $2,484,391 during the year ended December 31, 2017. After the discontinued operations,
the financial situation is somewhat improved but the Company still has a net loss from continuing operations of
$2,257,094 and net cash used in operating activities – continuing operations of $809,619 for the year ended
December 31, 2017. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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In order for us to continue as a going concern, we will need to obtain additional debt or equity financing. We are
regularly and continually seeking additional funding from investors and from time to time we are in various stages
of negotiations. Nonetheless, to date we have not accomplished a financing of the size needed to put the Company
on a stable operating basis. There can be no assurance that we will be able to secure additional debt or equity
financing, that we will be able to attain positive cash flow operations, or that, if we are successful in any of those
actions, those actions will produce adequate cash flow to enable us to meet our future obligations. All of our
existing financing arrangements are short-term. If we are unable to obtain additional debt or equity financing, we
may be required to cease operations.
NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include operations and balances
of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries NABUFIT Denmark, NABUFIT China,
and NABUFIT IP. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. NABUFIT
China and NABUFIT IP had no activity. All three subsidiaries were sold to an employee of NABUFIT Denmark
effective August 30, 2017. As a result of this action, the current year and prior year disclosures reflect these
operations as discontinued operations and prior year financial information has been restated to reflect this
accounting treatment. The subsidiaries were consolidated up through August 30, 2017, the date they were sold.
Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
Fair Value – The fair values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
at the reporting date.
Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations – The functional currency of NABUFIT Denmark is the
Danish Krone (DKK), the functional currency of NABUFIT China is the China Yuan Renminbi (CNY), and the
functional currency of NewBridge and the reporting currency is U.S. dollars (USD). The Company translates the
assets and liabilities of NABUFIT Denmark and NABUFIT China from the functional currency to U.S. dollars at
the appropriate spot rates as of the balance sheet date. Equity balances are translated using historical exchange
rates. Changes in the carrying value of these assets and liabilities attributable to fluctuations in spot rates are
recognized in foreign currency translation adjustment, a component of accumulated other comprehensive income.
Income statement accounts are translated using the average exchange rate during the period.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is different from the functional currency must first be
remeasured from the applicable currency to the functional currency. The effect of this remeasurement process is
recognized translation adjustments in our statement of comprehensive loss.
The Company had foreign currency transaction losses of $24,353 and $0 during the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents – The balance in cash and cash equivalents consists of cash reserves held in bank
accounts. The Company maintains cash balances in bank accounts that, at times, exceed federally insured limits.
The Company has not experienced any losses in these accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant
risk with respect to cash. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, cash deposits per bank statements exceeded the
federally insured limits by $0 and $1,392,919, the balance of cash in the NABUFIT Denmark accounts.
Revenue Recognition – The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
performance of the service has occurred, the sales price charged is fixed or determinable, and collectability is
reasonably assured. Revenue is net of taxes and discounts and is recorded on an accrual basis.
Software Development Costs – The Company expenses software development costs until the Company has a
working business model for the software.
Advertising Costs – Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were $165,979 and $279,088 for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Income Taxes – The Company accounts for income taxes pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
740, Income Taxes, which requires the use of the asset and liability method of accounting for deferred income
taxes. We recognize deferred tax liabilities and assets based on the differences between the tax basis of assets and
liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in
future years.
All allowances against deferred income tax assets are recorded in whole or in part, when it is more likely than not
those deferred income tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
A valuation allowance is required to the extent it is more-likely-than-not that a deferred tax asset will not be
realized. ASC 740 also requires reporting of taxes based on tax positions that meet a more-likely-than-not standard
and are measured at the amount that is more-likely-than-not to be realized. Differences between financial and tax
reporting which do not meet this threshold are required to be recorded as unrecognized tax benefits.
Derivatives – The Company has entered into convertible debt agreements whereby the related conversion features
are derivatives. Therefore, the Company has calculated the fair value of these derivatives on the execution dates
and has also recorded a gain on derivative for the change in fair value from the execution date to the reporting date.
The Company estimates fair values of derivative financial instruments using the Black-Scholes model, adjusted for
the effect of dilution, because it embodies all of the requisite assumptions (including trading volatility, estimated
terms, dilution and risk free rates) necessary to fair value these instruments. Estimating fair values of derivative
financial instruments requires the development of significant and subjective estimates that may, and are likely to,
change over the duration of the instrument with related changes in internal and external market factors. In addition,
option-based techniques (such as Black-Scholes model) are highly volatile and sensitive to changes in the trading
market price of our common stock.
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Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share – Basic loss per common share is calculated by dividing net loss by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per common share is
calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period
giving effect to potentially dilutive common stock equivalents. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company
had no common stock equivalents outstanding.
New Accounting Pronouncements – The Company does not expect the adoption of any recent accounting
pronouncements to have a material impact on its financial statements.
NOTE 4 – LEASES
On December 1, 2015, the Company signed a lease on their office in Fredericia Denmark for DKK 13,184 per
month ($1,900) and paid a security deposit of DKK 80,685 ($12,250). Effective March 1, 2016, the Company
signed Appendix 1 to the Fredericia lease agreement moving the office to a 190 square meter office located on the
first floor of the building. The rent and security deposit were not changed by the Appendix.
The Company also leased some office space for approximately $875 per month on a month-to-month contract. The
Company paid a deposit of approximately $900 in December 2015. Monthly rent started in January 2016 and
ended in March 2016.
On September 30, 2015, the Company assumed the short-term auto lease of a member of management that ended
January 8, 2016. Monthly payments were approximately $435 and the deposit was $2,400. The Company
renewed the auto lease for an additional twelve months, through January 7, 2017 at $350 per month. Actual
payments were in the functional currency.
As of December 31, 2017, total lease deposits and minimum annual lease payments were $0 as all leases were on
NABUFIT Denmark, which was sold during 2017. Rent expense was $33,000 and $39,727 for years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is classified as discontinued operations.
NOTE 5 – DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Effective August 31, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement on Transfer of Shares (“Transfer Agreement”)
with NABUfit Finance ApS, a Danish company (“Buyer”) wherein the Company agreed to sell to Buyer and Buyer
agreed to purchase from the Company all of the issued and outstanding shares owned by the Company in its three
wholly owned subsidiaries, NABUFIT Denmark, NABUFIT IP and NABUFIT China (the “Subsidiaries”). The
purchase price paid by Buyer for the Subsidiaries was DKK 250,000 (USD $40,000), plus possible additional
consideration of up to DKK 350,000 ($56,000) in payments related to tax refunds due to the Subsidiaries in the
fourth quarter of 2017. Actual tax refund ended up being approximately $40,000.
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The operating results of NABUFIT Denmark have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods
presented. NABUFIT China and NABUFIT IP were newly formed entities with no operations to report. The
following are the key components of the sale and discontinued operations:
Sales price
Tax refund

$

40,000
40,251

Carrying value of disposed business, net write off of
intercompany receivable

(44,629)

Expenses related to the sale

(1,135)

Loss on sale before write-off of foreign currency
translation adjustments

34,487

Write-off of foreign currency translation adjustments
recorded in other comprehensive income

(40,370)

Loss on sale of subsidiary

(5,883)

Discontinued operations year-to-date

(1,938,134)

Loss on sale of discontinued operations

$

(1,944,017)

The account classifications that make up the discontinued operations as of December 31, 2016, on the balance
sheet, are shown below:
12/31/2016
Assets
Cash

$

Prepaids

1,392,919
2,684,832

VAT receivable

35,283

Deposits
Current assets of discontinued operations

14,528
4,127,562

Liabilities
Accounts payable

(227,091)

Accrued liabilities
Related party payables

(2,241,419)
(25,450)

Current liabilities of discontinued operations

$

(2,493,960)

NOTE 6 – ACCRUED LIABILITIES
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had accrued liabilities of $70,034 and $63,519, comprised
largely of accrued payroll. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had additional accrued liabilities of $2,241,419
comprised mostly of $2,115,890, which was to be paid over the subsequent 18 months on an ambassador contract
with a professional athlete. This amount is included in discontinued operations. This contract was sold as part of
the Transfer of shares. See Note 5.
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NOTE 7 – LINE-OF-CREDIT
On September 15, 2015, the Company entered into a 600,000 DKK (approximately $90,000) line-of-credit
agreement with a bank. The agreement bears interest at a variable rate of 6.021%, which is renegotiated annually
on June 1. The line of credit is unsecured. Default interest rate of 19% goes into effect from the first late payment
and is calculated on the balance of the outstanding debt. During 2016, the Company utilized the full credit line but
then paid it down to zero by the end of the year. The Company paid approximately $100 and $138 in interest
during the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The credit line was on NABUFIT Denmark. As
of December 31, 2017, the Company does not have a line of credit.
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NOTE 8 – CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
December 31, 2017
March 23, 2017, the Company issued four convertible notes payable for total cash proceeds of
1,000,000 DKK ($145,034 as of March 23, 2017). The notes bore no interest and matured on
May 1, 2017 and automatically converted into shares of the Company’s common stock at
$3.00 per share on the maturity date. The fair value of the stock on March 23, 2017 was
$4.80 so the Company recognized a beneficial conversion feature and debt discount of
$87,020. The discount was amortized over the term of the notes. The balance of the debt
discount was $0 as of December 31, 2017.

$

-

May 9, 2017 convertible note payable of $58,000 to a third party at 9% interest and February
9, 2018 maturity date; principal and accrued interest is convertible at 65% of market value on
the date of conversion; market value is calculated as the average of the 5 lowest close prices
of the common stock during the previous 10 trading days; convertible into 22,222 shares at a
conversion price of $2.61 as of the May 9, 2017 measurement date; convertible 180 days after
the issue date until the maturity date. The Company recorded a derivative of $75,957 on May
9, 2017 due to the variable nature of the conversion price, as well as, a debt discount of
$58,000 and a loss on derivative of $17,957. The discount is amortized over the term of the
note. The derivative was remeasured on June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2017, which
resulted in a gain on derivative of $25,287 and $11,151, respectively. On October 13, 2017,
the Company paid $75,038 to settle the outstanding principal and interest. The payment
included a prepayment penalty of $11,876.

-

May 10, 2017 convertible note payable of $50,000 to a third party at 0% interest and
November 9, 2017 maturity date; on September 29, 2017, the note was settled through the
issuance of 161,290 shares of common stock at $0.31 per share. The Company recorded a
derivative of $49,334 on May 10, 2017 due to the variable nature of the conversion price, as
well as, a debt discount of $50,000. The derivative was remeasured on June 30, 2017 and
September 29, 2017, which resulted in a gain on derivative of $11,735 and $10,756,
respectively. Upon settlement, the $26,843 derivative liability was charged to additional
paid-in capital and the remaining debt discount was recorded as a loss on debt settlement.

-

June 27, 2017 convertible note payable of 2,200,000 DKK ($331,325 at June 27, 2017) to a
third party at 12% interest; cash proceeds were net of a loan origination fee of $33,133.
Effective September 18, 2017, the Company issued 1,214,333 shares of common stock
valued at $0.30 per share, to settle the principal plus accrued interest ($354,839 principal and
$9,461 accrued interest based on rates in the settlement agreement). The Company
recognized a foreign currency transaction loss of $24,353.

-

Total convertible notes payable

$
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NOTE 9 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES
The Company evaluated the terms of the convertible debt conversion features under the applicable accounting
literature, including Derivatives and Hedging, ASC 815, and determined that certain features required separate
accounting as derivatives. The derivatives were recorded as "derivative liabilities" on the condensed consolidated
balance sheets and will be adjusted to reflect fair value at each reporting date. The total fair value of the derivative
liabilities at issuance was $125,291. The fair value of the derivative liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 was
$0. The Company recognized a gain of $40,972 for the year ended December 31, 2017, which is presented as "gain
on derivative" on the consolidated statements of operations, and recognized a $26,843 reduction in the derivative
liability related to the settlement of a convertible note payable. The $26,843 was recorded as a credit to additional
paid-in capital.
On May 9, 2017, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $75,957 on convertible debt due to the variable
nature of the conversion price. The valuation was based on the Black-Scholes model. The Company recorded a
loss on derivative of $17,957 since the value of the derivative was greater than the proceeds from the convertible
note. As of September 30, 2017, the derivative liability was remeasured at $39,519. On October 12, 2017, the
Company settled the debt and recorded a gain on settlement of $39,380, the remeasured derivative liability as of
the settlement date. The details are as follows:
May 9,
Stock price at valuation date

$

Conversion price
Risk free rate
Volatility

$

June 30,

September 30,

2017
5.10

2017
$
2.40

$

2017
0.61

2.61
1.07%
160.28%

$

$

1.56
1.14%
148.43%

0.40
1.11%
112.12%

October 12,
$
$

2017
0.51
0.33
1.09%
111.63%

Number of shares if converted
Value of derivative

$

22,222
75,957

$

37,656
50,670

$

150,148
39,519

$

180,264
39,380

Gain (loss) on derivative

$

(17,957)

$

25,287

$

11,151

$

139

On May 10, 2017, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $49,334 on convertible debt due to a rounddown provision of the conversion price. The valuation was based on the Black-Scholes model. As of September
29, 2017, the derivative liability was valued at $26,843. The valuation was done as of September 29, 2017 since
that is the date the note was converted to shares of common stock. The details are as follows:
May 10, 2017 derivative

Stock price at valuation date
Conversion price
Risk free rate
Volatility
Number of shares if converted
Value of derivative
Gain on derivative

$
$

$
$

May 10,
2017
5.10
3.00
1.02%
160.26%
16,667
49,334
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$
$

$
$

June 30,
2017
2.40
1.56
1.05%
124.88%
32,051
37,599
11,735

September 29,
2017
$
0.61
$
0.40
0.99%
85.30%
125,000
$
26,843
$
10,756

NOTE 10 – STOCK OPTIONS
Incentive Plan
An Incentive Plan was approved by the NewBridge Board on October 18, 2017 and by a majority of the
stockholders on October 19, 2017. The Incentive Plan permits NewBridge to grant “Awards,” that may consist of
stock options, the grant or sale of restricted stock (“Restricted Stock”), stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), or
hypothetical units issued with reference to NewBridge common stock (“Restricted Stock Units”), for up to
4,000,000 shares of common stock. Awards may be granted under the Incentive Plan to employees, directors, and
consultants of NewBridge and its subsidiaries, including also subsidiaries that NewBridge may form or acquire in
the future. The Incentive Plan will be administered by the NewBridge Board or by a committee authorized by the
NewBridge Board (the “Committee”), which will make all determinations with regard to the grant and terms of
Awards, subject to the terms of the Incentive Plan.
On October 12, 2017, the Company granted options to Mark Merman, CEO and Scott Cox, President and COO, to
purchase 1,508,543 shares of common stock each (3,017,086 total). The options have an exercise price of $0.01
per share and expire December 31, 2018. The options are exercisable upon achievement of various milestones. As
of December 31, 2017, none of the options were exercisable. The combined stock options were valued at
$1,518,884 using Black-Scholes. The Company recognized share-based compensation on these stock options of
$272,572 during 2017 and has $1,246,312 of unrecognized share-based compensation that will be recognized
ratable over the year ended December 31, 2018. On February 6, 2018, options of 2,817,085 vested upon Board
approval. The remaining 200,000 options have not yet vested but are still expected to vest.
The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for the grants made in 2017:

Expected life (in years)
Risk free interest rate

2017
1.22
1.38%

Expected volatility
Dividend yield

245%
-

NOTE 11 – STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
We have authorized capital stock consisting of 100,000,000 shares of $0.0001 par value common stock and
400,000 shares of $0.0001 par value preferred stock. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, we had 3,695,604 and
854,338 (post-reverse stock split) shares of common stock issued and outstanding, and no shares of preferred stock
issued and outstanding.
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Reverse Stock Split
Effective June 27, 2017, the Company filed an Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (“Restated
Certificate”) with the Delaware Secretary of State whereby the Company effected a reverse stock split to reduce
the number of shares of outstanding common stock at a rate of 1 share for every 30 shares of common stock then
outstanding (“Reverse Split”). The approval of the Restated Certificate was approved by written consent of
holders of a majority of the Company’s common stock. Each stockholder owning fewer than 30 shares of common
stock immediately before the effective time of the Reverse Stock Split received from the Company $0.10 in cash,
without interest, for each of such shares of common stock; and (b) each stockholder owning of record 30 or more
shares of common stock immediately before the effective time of the Reverse Split held, after the Reverse Split,
the number of shares of common stock equal to 1/30th of the number held prior to the Reverse Split. On June 28,
2017 the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and the Company’s stockholders
were furnished with a Definitive Information Statement filed on Schedule 14(c) to advise the stockholders of the
corporate actions. All share and per-share amounts included in these financial statements have been restated to
reflect the 1 for 30 reverse stock split.
Stock Issued for Cash
On July 15, 2016, the Company announced the closing of the sale of 50,135 post-split shares of its common stock
for $1,383,726 or $27.60 per share. The sale of the Shares was registered pursuant to the Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-210325) declared effective on June 13, 2016 and was made pursuant to subscription
agreements dated on or about June 29, 2016.
During September 2016, the Company issued approximately 11,934 post-split shares of common stock to investors
and service providers at $27.60 per share for a total of $329,373.
On December 21, 2016, the Company issued approximately 95,091 post-split shares of common stock to various
parties at $15.00 per share for a total of $1,426,346. The sale of the Shares was registered pursuant to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-210325) declared effective on June 13, 2016.
On April 3, 2017, the Company entered into a Common Stock Subscription Agreement with LF Investments ApS
for the purchase of approximately 2,389 post-split shares at the price of $90.00 per share for $215,000.
On May 1, 2017, the Company entered into a Common Stock Subscription Agreement with Hans Kjaer Holding
A/S for the purchase of approximately 1,594 post-split shares at the price of $90.00 per share for $143,472.
On September 29, 2017, the Company issued approximately 22,221 post-split shares of common stock for
$201,280 of cash; 4,301 of these shares were to Brian Mertz, the former CEO.
Stock was issued for cash of $559,752 and $3,139,445 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
Stock Issued for Services
Between August 18, 2016 and September 26, 2016, the Company issued approximately 13,355 post-split shares of
common stock to investors and service providers at $27.60 per share for a total of $368,600. The services have
been classified as investor relations expense.
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Effective September 30 2016, the Company issued approximately 13,961 post-split shares of common stock to NR
Sports in connection to the Neymar contract. The shares were valued at $27.60 per share, which was the market
price of the stock on the effective issuance date. The expense of $385,361 was recorded as marketing expense.
On December 14, 2016, the Company issued approximately 2,408 post-split shares of common stock to third
parties. The shares were valued at $21.90 per share, which was the market price of the stock on the issuance date.
The expense of $52,696 was recorded as consulting expense.
During December 2016, the Company issued 5,000 shares of common stock to a service provider at $16.50 per
share for a total of $82,500, which was expensed as investor relations.
On September 29, 2017, the Company issued 220,228 shares of common stock to service providers at $0.61 per
share for a total of $134,339; $88,506 of this balance was for Brian Mertz’s salary from October through December
2017.
Effective December 1, 2017, the Company issued 150,000 shares of common stock to a service provider at $1.25
per share for a total of $187,500, which was expensed as investor relations.
Total stock issued for services was $321,839 and $889,157 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
Stock Issued for Share-Based Compensation
On September 30, 2015, the Company issued 1,000 post-split shares of its common stock to two outside directors:
Soren Jonassen and Ole Sigetty for their services through June 30, 2016. The shares issued were valued at $120.00
per share for a total of $240,000, which was the market price of the stock on the issuance date. Of the total amount
$80,000 was expensed prior to the reverse merger and $20,000 was recorded as share-based compensation for the
period from November 30, 2015 through December 31, 2015; the balance of $120,000 was recorded as a sharebased compensation ratably over the first six months of 2016.
On July 1, 2016, the Company entered into a management agreement with Brian Mertz. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company agreed to issue 8,334 post-split shares of common stock as partial compensation for the
six-month period ending December 31, 2016. The Company issued 8,334 post-split shares and recognized sharebased compensation of $206,252 for the year ended December 31, 2016.
On August 24, 2016, the Board of Directors approved share-based compensation for the twelve-month period
ending June 30, 2017 for the directors, chairman and secretary and also approved payments for services to Soren
Jonassen and Ole Sigetty. For the twelve-month period, the directors receive 725 post-split shares ($20,000), the
chairman receives 1,087 shares ($30,000), and the secretary receives 272 post-split shares ($7,500). In addition,
the Board approved payments for services to Soren Jonassen and Ole Sigetty for the twelve month period ending
June 30, 2017 of 1,034 post-split shares ($28,520) and 2,138 post-split shares ($59,000), respectively. For year
ended December 31, 2016, the total share-based compensation recognized pursuant to these agreements was
$91,925.
On December 14, 2016, the Company issued 2,000 post-split shares at $21.90 per share to 10 employees. The
expense of $43,800 was recognized in December 2016. The Company also issued 500 post-split shares to one
employee based on a six-month employment agreement that began September 1, 2016 of which $11,444 was
expensed during the year ended December 31, 2016, after foreign exchange translation adjustments.
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Effective October 12, 2017, the Company issued 100,000 shares at $0.51 per share to Mark Mersman and Scott
Cox, respectively. The expense of $102,000 was recognized in October 2017.
During 2017, the Company recognized share-based compensation on stock options (see Note 10) of $272,572 and
has $1,246,312 of unrecognized share-based compensation that will be expensed through December 31, 2018.
Total share-based compensation of $455,911 and $473,420 was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively.
Stock Issued for Convertible Debt and Settlement of Convertible Debt and Accounts Payable
During March 2017, the Company recorded a credit to additional paid-in capital of $87,020 for the beneficial
conversion feature described in Note 8.
On May 9, 2017, the Company issued 48,345 shares of common stock at $3.00 per share to settle convertible notes
payable of $145,034.
On September 29, 2017, the Company issued 1,375,623 shares of common stock at $0.61 per share to settle
convertible notes payable of $414,300 and issued 70,827 shares of common stock at $0.61 per share to settle
accounts payable of $24,382, which included $5,532 of related party payables to Brian Mertz. The Company
recognized a loss on debt settlement of $417,090 on the settlement of the convertible notes payable and accounts
payable.
Total settlement of convertible debt and accounts payable from stock issuances during 2017 was $559,334 and
$24,382, respectively, with a loss on debt settlement of $417,090.
Private Placement
The Company entered into an Equity Purchase Agreement dated November 22, 2017 (“Purchase Agreement”) with
Kodiak Capital Group, LLC (“Kodiak”), whereby Kodiak agrees to purchase, through puts, up to $2,000,000 worth
of the shares of the Company’s common stock. In accordance with the terms of the Purchase Agreement and the
Registration Rights Agreement dated November 22, 2017 between the Company and Kodiak (“Registration
Agreement”), the Company is required to register the Shares on Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) as a condition precedent to Kodiak’s obligation to close on the purchase of the shares. The
Kodiak Agreement was terminated on January 31, 2018, effective March 2, 2018.
NOTE 12 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had related party payables of $1,988 and $30,183 to its former
CEO and current Board Director for expenses related to the operation of the business. The 2016 payable includes
$25,450 classified as current liabilities of discontinued operations on the balance sheet. These payables were due
on demand with no interest.
On November 10, 2017, the Company entered into an assignment agreement with Mustang Capital, LLC
(“Mustang”) whereby Mustang has assigned all beneficial interest into an existing Management Consulting
Agreement with Elevated Portfolio Holdings, LLC. Mustang is controlled by Mark Mersman, CEO.
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NOTE 13 – MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF DIRECTOR CHANGES
On October 11, 2017, Brian Mertz resigned as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. The resignation was not
related to any disagreements with the Company on any matter relating to its operations, policies, practices or any
issues regarding financial disclosures, accounting or legal matters.
On October 18, 2017, the Board appointed Mark Mersman as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Information Officer and Scott Cox as the Company’s President and Chief Operating Officer. Pursuant to that
appointment, the Company agreed to issue each of Mr. Mersman and Mr. Cox 100,000 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock as a signing bonus with the ability to earn additional shares upon meeting certain performance
milestones pursuant to their Employment Agreements.
Effective October 18, 2017, Directors Mads H. Fredericksen, Jorgen Buhl Rasmussen, Kristoffer Ewald and Allan
J. Vestergaard resigned from the Board of Directors. The resignations were not related to any disagreements with
the Company on any matter relating to its operations, policies, practices or any issues regarding financial
disclosures, accounting or legal matters.
On October 18, 2017, the shareholders holding a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s
common stock elected Ole Sigetty, Brian Palm Svaneeng Mertz, Mark Mersman, Scott Cox and Benjamin Esque
as Directors of the Company, to serve until his respective successor is duly elected and qualified or his earlier
resignation, death or removal by the stockholders of the Company. Ole Sigetty and Brian Mertz have previously
served as officers and directors of the Company.
NOTE 14 – MARKETING AGREEMENTS
The Company signs marketing agreements with professional trainers and athletes to help promote the Company’s
products and services. Effective September 1, 2016, the Company entered into a three-year marketing agreement
with Neymar Jr, a professional soccer player out of Brazil. Under the marketing agreement, the Company was
required to pay 2,500,000 EUR (approximately $2,715,000 USD) in semiannual payments of 500,000 EUR
(approximately $543,000) plus 2% royalty payments. The Company also agreed to issue 13,961 post-split shares
to Neymar Jr. during the contract period. The Company recorded the full amount of the agreement, including the
issuance of shares, during the quarter ended September 30, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the Company
amortized approximately $411,000 and had a remaining prepaid of approximately $2,336,000. This contract was
included in the sale of the subsidiaries during 2017 and amortization of approximately $700,000 was included in
discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2017.
During November 2016, the Company commenced a three-year agreement with Mo Farah, a world-class runner,
that required payments of $50,000 in year one and $100,000 in years two and three, for a total of $250,000.
Approximately $8,300 was expensed during 2016. This contract was included in the sale of the subsidiaries
during 2017.
Total marketing expense from athlete contracts was approximately $718,000 and $419,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These amounts are included in discontinued operations.
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NOTE 15 – INCOME TAXES
Operating loss for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $4,201,111, of which $1,944,017 related to foreign
operations. Operating loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $4,038,582, of which $2,644,723 related to
foreign operations.
As of December 31, 2017, the Company had $1,099,467 of deferred tax assets on the net operating loss carry
forwards related to its operations in Denmark, which the Company will not benefit from since it sold its foreign
operations. The Company had $1,310,167 of deferred tax assets on the net operating loss carryforwards relating to
its USA operations, which are comprised of $5,031,674 of U.S. federal and $6,418,115 state net operating losses,
respectively, which begin to expire in 2032 if unused. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had $646,910 of
deferred tax assets on the net operating loss carry forwards related to its operations in Denmark, which do not
expire and $1,704,789 of net operating loss carryforwards relating to its USA operations, which are comprised of
$4,447,829 of U.S. federal and $5,834,170 state net operating losses, respectively, which begin to expire in 2032 if
unused.
A change in our ownership of more than 50% occurred during the period ended December 31, 2015 triggering
certain utilization limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and other
limitations under state tax laws. As a result, the provisions of Section 382 caused net operating losses under state
tax laws of $1,274,626 to become permanently restricted.
The temporary differences and carry forwards which give rise to the deferred income tax assets for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2017
2016
$
1,310,167
$
1,704,789
(1,310,167)
(1,704,789)
$
$
-

Net operating loss carry forwards
Valuation allowance
Net long-term deferred tax asset

A reconciliation of income taxes at the federal statutory rate to actual income tax expense for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2017
2016
$
(882,233) $
(1,373,126)

Income tax expense (benefit) at the statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Foreign rate differential

(74,484)
(19,440)

(45,998)
316,851

Change in valuation allowance
Change in net operating loss carry forwards
Tax effect of change in federal tax rate

103,495
156,958
516,975

1,100,803
-

Other

198,729

Income tax expense(benefit)

$
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-

1,470
$

-

NOTE 16 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On February 6, 2018, the Company entered into an Equity Financing Agreement (“Financing Agreement”) with
GHS Investments, LLC (“GHS”), whereby GHS agreed to purchase, through puts made from time to time by the
Company, up to $2,000,000 worth of the shares (“Shares”) of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per
share (“Common Stock”). In accordance with the terms of the Financing Agreement and the Registration Rights
Agreement dated February 6, 2018 between the Company and GHS (“Registration Agreement”), the Company is
required to register the Shares on Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as a condition
precedent to GHS’s obligation to close on the purchase of the Shares.
On February 14, 2018, the Company formed Elevated Eduction, Inc. (“Elevated”) as a wholly owned subsidiary.
The Company was incorporated in Delaware. On February 19, 2018, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase
Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) with Elevated Portfolio Holdings, LLC (“Elevated Portfolio”), whereby
Elevated agreed to purchase the assets of Elevated Portfolio for 2,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock,
par value $0.0001 per share. The shares were valued at $2,700,000 based on the market price of $1.35 per share on
February 19, 2018. Elevated Portfolio offers medically focused education modules to health professionals about the
use of cannabis for health and wellness. The Purchase Agreement was closed on March 2, 2018. As a result, the
Company is able to use the acquired intellectual property assets to continue its consulting business and provide key
educational products as part of its service offering.
On March 5, 2018, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares to Mark Mersman, CEO and 1,000,000 shares to Scott
Cox, President, as a result of the exercise of some of their stock options. The options had an exercise price of $0.01
per share. The Company also issued 301,250 shares in a private placement to five individuals at $0.40 per share.
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Mark Mersman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The small business issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the small business issuer and have:
(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the small business issuer’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report)
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business
issuer’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and
the audit committee of the small business issuer’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a)

(b)

Date: April 2,
2018

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ MARK MERSMAN
Mark Mersman, Chief Executive Officer
NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Robert K. Bench, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The small business issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the small business issuer and have:
(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the small business issuer’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report)
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business
issuer’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and
the audit committee of the small business issuer’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
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(a)

(b)

Date: April 2,
2018

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ ROBERT K. BENCH
Robert K. Bench, Principal Financial Officer
NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.
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EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Mark Mersman, Principal Executive Officer and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 2, 2018

/s/ MARK MERSMAN

Brian Mertz, Chief Executive Officer
NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.

EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Robert K. Bench, Principal Financial Officer and President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

April 2, 2018

/s/
ROBERT
K. BENCH
Robert
K. Bench,
Principal Financial Officer
NewBridge Global Ventures, Inc.

